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(h) Disqualification from approval of
petitions. Where the WHD Adminis-
trator finds a substantial failure to
meet any conditions of the application
or in a DHS Form I-129, or a willful
misrepresentation of a material fact in
an application or in a DHS Form I-129,
as those terms are defined in §655.31,
the Administrator may recommend
that ETA debar the employer for a pe-
riod of no less than 1 year, and no more
than 3 years.

(i) If the WHD Administrator finds a
violation of the provisions specified in
this subpart, the Administrator may
impose such other administrative rem-
edies as the Administrator determines
to be appropriate, including reinstate-
ment of displaced U.S. workers, or
other appropriate legal or equitable
remedies. If the WHD Administrator
finds that an employer has not paid
wages at the wage level specified under
the application and required by
§6565.22(e), the Administrator may re-
quire the employer to provide for pay-
ment of such amounts of back pay as
may be required to comply with the re-
quirements of §655.22(e).

(j) The civil money penalties deter-
mined by the WHD Administrator to be
appropriate are due for payment within
30 days of the assessment by the Ad-
ministrator, or upon the decision by an
administrative law judge where a hear-
ing is timely requested, or upon the de-
cision by the Secretary where review is
granted. The employer shall remit the
amount of the civil money penalty by
certified check or money order made
payable to the order of ‘““Wage and
Hour Division, Labor.” The remittance
shall be delivered or mailed to the
Wage and Hour Division office in the
manner directed in the Administrator’s
notice of determination. The payment
or performance of any other remedy
prescribed by the Administrator shall
follow procedures established by the
Administrator.

(k) The Federal Civil Penalties Infla-
tion Adjustment Act of 1990, as amend-
ed (28 U.S.C. 2461 note), requires that
inflationary adjustments to civil
money penalties in accordance with a
specified cost-of-living formula be
made, by regulation, at least every 4
years. The adjustments are to be based
on changes in the Consumer Price
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Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U)
for the U.S. City Average for All Items.
The adjusted amounts will be published
in the FEDERAL REGISTER. The amount
of the penalty in a particular case will
be based on the amount of the penalty
in effect at the time the violation oc-
curs.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10166, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.65 was removed and reserved, ef-
fective Apr. 23, 2012.

§§655.66-655.69 [Reserved]

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10166, Feb.
21, 2012, §§655.66 through 655.69 were added
and reserved, effective Apr. 23, 2012.

INTEGRITY MEASURES

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10166, Feb.
21, 2012, an undesignated center heading was
added before §655.70, effective Apr. 23, 2012.

§655.70 WHD Administrator’s deter-
mination.

(a) The WHD Administrator’s deter-
mination shall be served on the em-
ployer by personal service or by cer-
tified mail at the employer’s last
known address. Where service by cer-
tified mail is not accepted by the em-
ployer, the Administrator may exercise
discretion to serve the determination
by regular mail.

(b) The WHD Administrator shall file
with the Chief Administrative Law
Judge, U.S. Department of Labor, a
copy of the Administrator’s determina-
tion.

(c) The WHD Administrator’s written
determination shall:

(1) Set forth the determination of the
Administrator and the reason or rea-
sons therefore, and in the case of a
finding of violation(s) by an employer,
prescribe the amount of any back
wages and civil money penalties as-
sessed and the reason therefor.

(2) Inform the employer that a hear-
ing may be requested pursuant to
§655.71.

(3) Inform the employer that in the
absence of a timely request for a hear-
ing, received by the Chief Administra-
tive Law Judge within 15 calendar days
of the date of the determination, the
determination of the Administrator
shall become final and not appealable.
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(4) Set forth the procedure for re-
questing a hearing, give the addresses
of the Chief Administrative Law Judge
(with whom the request must be filed)
and the representative(s) of the Solic-
itor of Labor (upon whom copies of the
request must be served).

(6) Where appropriate, inform the
employer that the Administrator will
notify ETA and DHS of the occurrence
of a violation by the employer.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10166, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.70 was revised, effective Apr. 23,
2012. For the convenience of the user, the re-
vised text is set forth as follows:

§655.70 Audits.

The CO may conduct audits of adjudicated
temporary labor certification applications.

(a) Discretion. The CO has the sole discre-
tion to choose the applications selected for
audit.

(b) Audit letter. Where an application is se-
lected for audit, the CO will send an audit
letter to the employer and a copy, if appro-
priate, to the employer’s attorney or agent.
The audit letter will:

(1) Specify the documentation that must
be submitted by the employer;

(2) Specify a date, no more than 30 cal-
endar days from the date the audit letter is
issued, by which the required documentation
must be sent to the CO; and

(3) Advise that failure to fully comply with
the audit process may result:

(i) In the requirement that the employer
undergo the assisted recruitment procedures
in §655.71 in future filings of H-2B temporary
labor certification applications for a period
of up to 2 years, or

(ii) In a revocation of the certification and/
or debarment from the H-2B program and
any other foreign labor certification pro-
gram administered by the Department.

(c) Supplemental information request. During
the course of the audit examination, the CO
may request supplemental information and/
or documentation from the employer in
order to complete the audit. If cir-
cumstances warrant, the CO can issue one or
more requests for supplemental information.

(d) Potential referrals. In addition to meas-
ures in this subpart, the CO may decide to
provide the audit findings and underlying
documentation to DHS, WHD, or other ap-
propriate enforcement agencies. The CO may
refer any findings that an employer discour-
aged a qualified U.S. worker from applying,
or failed to hire, discharged, or otherwise
discriminated against a qualified U.S. work-
er, to the Department of Justice, Civil
Rights Division, Office of Special Counsel for
Unfair Immigration Related Employment
Practices.
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§655.71 Request for hearing.

(a) An employer desiring review of a
determination issued under §655.70, in-
cluding judicial review, shall make a
request for such an administrative
hearing in writing to the Chief Admin-
istrative Law Judge at the address
stated in the notice of determination.
In such a proceeding, the Adminis-
trator shall be the prosecuting party,
and the employer shall be the respond-
ent. If such a request for an adminis-
trative hearing is timely filed, the
WHD Administrator’s determination
shall be inoperative unless and until
the case is dismissed or the Adminis-
trative Law Judge issues an order af-
firming the decision.

(b) No particular form is prescribed
for any request for hearing permitted
by this section. However, any such re-
quest shall:

(1) Be dated;

(2) Be typewritten or legibly written;

(3) Specify the issue or issues stated
in the notice of determination giving
rise to such request;

(4) State the specific reason or rea-
sons why the employer believes such
determination is in error;

(5) Be signed by the employer making
the request or by an authorized rep-
resentative of such employer; and

(6) Include the address at which such
employer or authorized representative
desires to receive further communica-
tions relating thereto.

(c) The request for such hearing must
be received by the Chief Administra-
tive Law Judge, at the address stated
in the WHD Administrator’s notice of
determination, no later than 15 cal-
endar days after the date of the deter-
mination. An employer which fails to
meet this 15-day deadline for request-
ing a hearing may thereafter partici-
pate in the proceedings only by consent
of the administrative law judge.

(d) The request may be filed in per-
son, by facsimile transmission, by cer-
tified or regular mail, or by courier
service. For the requesting employer’s
protection, if the request is by mail, it
should be by certified mail. If the re-
quest is by facsimile transmission, the
original of the request, signed by the
employer or authorized representative,
shall be filed within 10 days.
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(e) Copies of the request for a hearing
shall be sent by the employer or au-
thorized representative to the WHD of-
ficial who issued the WHD Administra-
tor’s notice of determination, and to
the representative(s) of the Solicitor of
Labor identified in the notice of deter-
mination.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10166, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.71 was revised, effective Apr. 23,
2012. For the convenience of the user, the re-
vised text is set forth as follows:

§655.71 CO-ordered assisted recruitment.

(a) Requirement of assisted recruitment. If, as
a result of audit or otherwise, the CO deter-
mines that a violation has occurred that
does not warrant debarment, the CO may re-
quire the employer to engage in assisted re-
cruitment for a defined period of time for
any future Application for Temporary Employ-
ment Certification.

(b) Notification of assisted recruitment. The
CO will notify the employer (and its attor-
ney or agent, if applicable) in writing of the
assisted recruitment that will be required of
the employer for a period of up to 2 years
from the date the notice is issued. The noti-
fication will state the reasons for the imposi-
tion of the additional requirements, state
that the employer’s agreement to accept the
conditions will constitute their inclusion as
bona fide conditions and terms of a tem-
porary labor certification, and offer the em-
ployer an opportunity to request an adminis-
trative review. If administrative review is
requested, the procedures in §655.61 apply.

(c) Assisted recruitment. The assisted re-
cruitment process will be in addition to any
recruitment required of the employer by
§§655.41 through 655.47 and may consist of,
but is not limited to, one or more of the fol-
lowing:

(1) Requiring the employer to submit a
draft advertisement to the CO for review and
approval at the time of filing the Application
for Temporary Employment Certification;

(2) Designating the sources where the em-
ployer must recruit for U.S. workers, includ-
ing newspapers and other publications, and
directing the employer to place the adver-
tisement(s) in such sources;

(3) Extending the length of the placement
of the advertisement and/or job order;

(4) Requiring the employer to notify the
CO and the SWA in writing when the adver-
tisement(s) are placed;

(5) Requiring an employer to perform any
additional assisted recruitment directed by
the CO;

(6) Requiring the employer to provide proof
of the publication of all advertisements as
directed by the CO, in addition to providing
a copy of the job order;
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(7) Requiring the employer to provide proof
of all SWA referrals made in response to the
job order;

(8) Requiring the employer to submit any
proof of contact with all referrals and past
U.S. workers; and/or

(9) Requiring the employer to provide any
additional documentation verifying it con-
ducted the assisted recruitment as directed
by the CO.

(d) Failure to comply. If an employer mate-
rially fails to comply with requirements or-
dered by the CO under this section, the cer-
tification will be denied and the employer
and/or its attorney or agent may be debarred
under §655.73.

§655.72 Hearing rules of practice.

(a) Except as specifically provided in
this subpart, and to the extent they do
not conflict with the provisions of this
subpart, the ‘“Rules of Practice and
Procedure for Administrative Hearings
Before the Office of Administrative
Law Judges’ established by the Sec-
retary at 29 CFR part 18 shall apply to
administrative proceedings under this
subpart.

(b) As provided in the Administrative
Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. 556, any oral or
documentary evidence may be received
in proceedings under this part. The
Federal Rules of Evidence and subpart
B of the Rules of Practice and Proce-
dure for Administrative Hearings Be-
fore the Office of Administrative Law
Judges (29 CFR part 18, subpart B) shall
not apply, but principles designed to
ensure production of relevant and pro-
bative evidence shall guide the admis-
sion of evidence. The administrative
law judge may exclude evidence which
is immaterial, irrelevant, or unduly re-
petitive.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10166, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.72 was revised, effective Apr. 23,
2012. For the convenience of the user, the re-
vised text is set forth as follows:

§655.72 Revocation.

(a) Basis for DOL revocation. The Adminis-
trator, OFLC may revoke a temporary labor
certification approved under this subpart, if
the Administrator, OFLC finds:

(1) The issuance of the temporary labor
certification was not justified due to fraud or
willful misrepresentation of a material fact
in the application process, as defined in
§655.73(d);

(2) The employer substantially failed to
comply with any of the terms or conditions

527



§655.73

of the approved temporary labor certifi-
cation. A substantial failure is a willful fail-
ure to comply that constitutes a significant
deviation from the terms and conditions of
the approved certification and is further de-
fined in §655.73(d) and (e);

(3) The employer failed to cooperate with a
DOL investigation or with a DOL official
performing an investigation, inspection,
audit (under §655.73), or law enforcement
function under 29 CFR part 503 or this sub-
part; or

(4) The employer failed to comply with one
or more sanctions or remedies imposed by
WHD, or with one or more decisions or or-
ders of the Secretary with the respect to the
H-2B program.

(b) DOL procedures for revocation. (1) Notice
of Revocation. If the Administrator, OFLC
makes a determination to revoke an employ-
er’s temporary labor certification, the Ad-
ministrator, OFLC will send to the employer
(and its attorney or agent, if applicable) a
Notice of Revocation. The notice will con-
tain a detailed statement of the grounds for
the revocation and inform the employer of
its right to submit rebuttal evidence or to
appeal. If the employer does not file rebuttal
evidence or an appeal within 10 business days
from the date the Notice of Revocation is
issued, the notice is the final agency action
and will take effect immediately at the end
of the 10-day period.

(2) Rebuttal. If the employer timely sub-
mits rebuttal evidence, the Administrator,
OFLC will inform the employer of the final
determination on the revocation within 10
business days of receiving the rebuttal evi-
dence. If the Administrator, OFLC deter-
mines that the certification should be re-
voked, the Administrator, OFLC will inform
the employer of its right to appeal according
to the procedures of §655.61. If the employer
does not appeal the final determination, it
will become the final agency action.

(3) Appeal. An employer may appeal a No-
tice of Revocation, or a final determination
of the Administrator, OFLC after the review
of rebuttal evidence, according to the appeal
procedures of §655.61. The ALJ’s decision is
the final agency action.

(4) Stay. The timely filing of rebuttal evi-
dence or an administrative appeal will stay
the revocation pending the outcome of those
proceedings.

(5) Decision. If the temporary labor certifi-
cation is revoked, the Administrator, OFLC
will send a copy of the final agency action to
DHS and the Department of State.

(c) Employer’s obligations in the event of rev-
ocation. If an employer’s temporary labor
certification is revoked, the employer is re-
sponsible for:

(1) Reimbursement of actual
transportation and other expenses;

(2) The workers’ outbound transportation
expenses;

inbound
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(3) Payment to the workers of the amount
due under the three-fourths guarantee; and

(4) Any other wages, benefits, and working
conditions due or owing to the workers
under this subpart.

§655.73 Service of pleadings.

(a) Under this subpart, a party may
serve any pleading or document by reg-
ular mail. Service on a party is com-
plete upon mailing to the last known
address. No additional time for filing
or response is authorized where service
is by mail. In the interest of expedi-
tious proceedings, the administrative
law judge may direct the parties to
serve pleadings or documents by a
method other than regular mail.

(b) Two copies of all pleadings and
other documents in any administrative
law judge proceeding shall be served on
the attorneys for the WHD Adminis-
trator. One copy shall be served on the
Associate Solicitor, Division of Fair
Labor Standards, Office of the Solic-
itor, U.S. Department of Labor, 200
Constitution Avenue, NW., Room N-
2716, Washington, DC 20210, and one
copy shall be served on the attorney
representing the Administrator in the
proceeding.

(c) Time will be computed beginning
with the day following service and in-
cludes the last day of the period unless
it is a Saturday, Sunday, or Federally-
observed holiday, in which case the
time period includes the next business
day.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10166, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.73 was revised, effective Apr. 23,
2012. For the convenience of the user, the re-
vised text is set forth as follows:

§655.73 Debarment.

(a) Debarment of an employer. The Adminis-
trator, OFLC may not issue future labor cer-
tifications under this subpart to an employer
or any successor in interest to that em-
ployer, subject to the time limits set forth in
paragraph (c) of this section, if the Adminis-
trator, OFLC finds that the employer com-
mitted the following violations:

(1) Willful misrepresentation of a material
fact in its H-2B Registration, Application for
Temporary Employment Certification, or H-2B
Petition;

(2) Substantial failure to meet any of the
terms and conditions of its H-2B Registration,
Application for Temporary Employment Certifi-
cation, or H-2B Petition. A substantial failure
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is a willful failure to comply that con-
stitutes a significant deviation from the
terms and conditions of such documents; or

(3) Willful misrepresentation of a material
fact to the DOS during the visa application
process.

(b) Debarment of an agent or attorney. If the
Administrator, OFLC finds, under this sec-
tion, that an attorney or agent committed a
violation as described in paragraphs (a)(1)
through (3) of this section or participated in
an employer’s violation, the Administrator,
OFLC may not issue future labor certifi-
cations to an employer represented by such
agent or attorney, subject to the time limits
set forth in paragraph (c) of this section.

(¢) Period of debarment. Debarment under
this subpart may not be for less than 1 year
or more than 5 years from the date of the
final agency decision.

(d) Determining whether a violation is willful.
A willful misrepresentation of a material
fact or a willful failure to meet the required
terms and conditions occurs when the em-
ployer, attorney, or agent knows a state-
ment is false or that the conduct is in viola-
tion, or shows reckless disregard for the
truthfulness of its representation or for
whether its conduct satisfies the required
conditions.

(e) Determining whether a violation is signifi-
cant. In determining whether a violation is a
significant deviation from the terms and
conditions of the H-2B Registration, Applica-
tion for Temporary Employment Certification,
or H-2B Petition, the factors that the Admin-
istrator, OFLC may consider include, but are
not limited to, the following:

(1) Previous history of violation(s) under
the H-2B program;

(2) The number of H-2B workers, workers
in corresponding employment, or improperly
rejected U.S. applicants who were and/or are
affected by the violation(s);

(3) The gravity of the violation(s);

(4) The extent to which the violator
achieved a financial gain due to the viola-
tion(s), or the potential financial loss or po-
tential injury to the worker(s); and

(5) Whether U.S. workers have
harmed by the violation.

(f) Violations. Where the standards set forth
in paragraphs (d) and (e) in this section are
met, debarrable violations would include but
would not be limited to one or more acts of
commission or omission which involve:

(1) Failure to pay or provide the required
wages, benefits or working conditions to the
employer’s H-2B workers and/or workers in
corresponding employment;

(2) Failure, except for lawful, job-related
reasons, to offer employment to qualified
U.S. workers who applied for the job oppor-
tunity for which certification was sought;

(3) Failure to comply with the employer’s
obligations to recruit U.S. workers;

been
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(4) Improper layoff or displacement of U.S.
workers or workers in corresponding employ-
ment;

(5) Failure to comply with one or more
sanctions or remedies imposed by the Ad-
ministrator, WHD for violation(s) of obliga-
tions under the job order or other H-2B obli-
gations, or with one or more decisions or or-
ders of the Secretary or a court under this
subpart or 29 CFR part 503;

(6) Failure to comply with the Notice of
Deficiency process under this subpart;

(7) Failure to comply with the assisted re-
cruitment process under this subpart;

(8) Impeding an investigation of an em-
ployer under 29 CFR part 503 or an audit
under this subpart;

(9) Employing an H-2B worker outside the
area of intended employment, in an activity/
activities not listed in the job order, or out-
side the validity period of employment of the
job order, including any approved extension
thereof;

(10) A violation of the requirements of
§655.20(0) or (p);

(11) A violation of any of the provisions
listed in §655.20(r);

(12) Any other act showing such flagrant
disregard for the law that future compliance
with program requirements cannot reason-
ably be expected;

(13) Fraud involving the H-2B Registration,
Application for Temporary Employment Certifi-
cation or the H-2B Petition; or

(14) A material misrepresentation of fact
during the registration or application proc-
ess.

(g) Debarment procedure. (1) Notice of De-
barment. If the Administrator, OFLC makes
a determination to debar an employer, attor-
ney, or agent, the Administrator, OFLC will
send the party a Notice of Debarment. The
Notice will state the reason for the debar-
ment finding, including a detailed expla-
nation of the grounds for and the duration of
the debarment and inform the party subject
to the notice of its right to submit rebuttal
evidence or to request a debarment hearing.
If the party does not file rebuttal evidence or
request a hearing within 30 calendar days of
the date of the Notice of Debarment, the no-
tice is the final agency action and the debar-
ment will take effect at the end of the 30-day
period. The timely filing of an rebuttal evi-
dence or a request for a hearing stays the de-
barment pending the outcome of the appeal
as provided in paragraphs (g)(2)-(6) of this
section.

(2) Rebuttal. The party who received the
Notice of Debarment may choose to submit
evidence to rebut the grounds stated in the
notice within 30 calendar days of the date
the notice is issued. If rebuttal evidence is
timely filed, the Administrator, OFLC will
issue a final determination on the debarment
within 30 calendar days of receiving the re-
buttal evidence. If the Administrator, OFLC
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determines that the party should be
debarred, the Administrator, OFLC will in-
form the party of its right to request a de-
barment hearing according to the procedures
in this section. The party must request a
hearing within 30 calendar days after the
date of the Administrator, OFLC’s final de-
termination, or the Administrator OFLC’s
determination will be the final agency order
and the debarment will take effect at the end
of the 30-day period.

(3) Hearing. The recipient of a Notice of
Debarment seeking to challenge the debar-
ment must request a debarment hearing
within 30 calendar days of the date of a No-
tice of Debarment or the date of a final de-
termination of the Administrator, OFLC
after review of rebuttal evidence submitted
under paragraph (g)(2) of this section. To ob-
tain a debarment hearing, the recipient
must, within 30 days of the date of the No-
tice or the final determination, file a written
request with the Chief ALJ, United States
Department of Labor, 800 K Street, NW.,
Suite 400-N, Washington, DC 20001-8002, and
simultaneously serve a copy on the Adminis-
trator, OFLC. The debarment will take effect
30 calendar days from the date the Notice of
Debarment or final determination is issued,
unless a request for review is timely filed.
Within 10 business days of receipt of the re-
quest for a hearing, the Administrator,
OFLC will send a certified copy of the ETA
case file to the Chief ALJ by means normally
assuring next day delivery. The Chief ALJ
will immediately assign an ALJ to conduct
the hearing. The procedures in 29 CFR part
18 apply to such hearings, except that the re-
quest for a hearing will not be considered to
be a complaint to which an answer is re-
quired.

(4) Decision. After the hearing, the ALJ
must affirm, reverse, or modify the Adminis-
trator, OFLC’s determination. The ALJ will
prepare the decision within 60 calendar days
after completion of the hearing and closing
of the record. The ALJ’s decision will be pro-
vided to the parties to the debarment hear-
ing by means normally assuring next day de-
livery. The ALJ’s decision is the final agency
action, unless either party, within 30 cal-
endar days of the ALJ’s decision, seeks re-
view of the decision with the Administrative
Review Board (ARB).

(5) Review by the ARB. (i) Any party wish-
ing review of the decision of an ALJ must,
within 30 calendar days of the decision of the
ALJ, petition the ARB to review the deci-
sion. Copies of the petition must be served
on all parties and on the ALJ. The ARB will
decide whether to accept the petition within
30 calendar days of receipt. If the ARB de-
clines to accept the petition, or if the ARB
does not issue a notice accepting a petition
within 30 calendar days after the receipt of a
timely filing of the petition, the decision of
the ALJ is the final agency action. If a peti-
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tion for review is accepted, the decision of
the ALJ will be stayed unless and until the
ARB issues an order affirming the decision.
The ARB must serve notice of its decision to
accept or not to accept the petition upon the
ALJ and upon all parties to the proceeding.

(ii) Upon receipt of the ARB’s notice to ac-
cept the petition, the Office of Administra-
tive Law Judges will promptly forward a
copy of the complete hearing record to the
ARB.

(iii) Where the ARB has determined to re-
view the decision and order, the ARB will no-
tify each party of the issue(s) raised, the
form in which submissions must be made
(e.g., briefs or oral argument), and the time
within which the presentation must be sub-
mitted.

(6) ARB Decision. The ARB’s final decision
must be issued within 90 calendar days from
the notice granting the petition and served
upon all parties and the ALJ.

(h) Concurrent debarment jurisdiction. OFLC
and the WHD have concurrent jurisdiction to
debar under this section or under 29 CFR
503.24. When considering debarment, OFLC
and the WHD will coordinate their activities.
A specific violation for which debarment is
imposed will be cited in a single debarment
proceeding. Copies of final debarment deci-
sions will be forwarded to DHS and DOS
promptly.

(i) Debarment from other foreign labor pro-
grams. Upon debarment under this subpart or
29 CFR 503.24, the debarred party will be dis-
qualified from filing any labor certification
applications or labor condition applications
with the Department by, or on behalf of, the
debarred party for the same period of time
set forth in the final debarment decision.

§655.74 Conduct of proceedings.

(a) Upon receipt of a timely request
for a hearing filed pursuant to and in
accordance with §655.71, the Chief Ad-
ministrative Law Judge shall promptly
appoint an administrative law judge to
hear the case.

(b) The administrative law judge
shall notify all parties of the date,
time and place of the hearing. All par-
ties shall be given at least 14 calendar
days notice of such hearing.

(c) The administrative law judge may
prescribe a schedule by which the par-
ties are permitted to file a prehearing
brief or other written statement of fact
or law. Any such brief or statement
shall be served upon each other party.
Post-hearing briefs will not be per-
mitted except at the request of the ad-
ministrative law judge. When per-
mitted, any such brief shall be limited
to the issue or issues specified by the
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administrative law judge, shall be due
within the time prescribed by the ad-
ministrative law judge, and shall be
served on each other party.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10169, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.74 was removed and reserved, ef-
fective Apr. 23, 2012.

§655.75 Decision and order of adminis-
trative law judge.

(a) The administrative law judge
shall issue a decision. If any party de-
sires review of the decision, including
judicial review, a petition for Adminis-
trative Review Board (Board) review
thereof shall be filed as provided in
§655.76. If a petition for review is filed,
the decision of the administrative law
judge shall be inoperative unless and
until the Board issues an order affirm-
ing the decision, or unless and until 30
calendar days have passed after the
Board’s receipt of the petition for re-
view and the Board has not issued no-
tice to the parties that the Board will
review the administrative law judge’s
decision.

(b) The decision of the administra-
tive law judge shall include a state-
ment of findings and conclusions, with
reasons and basis therefore, upon each
material issue presented on the record.
The decision shall also include an ap-
propriate order which may affirm,
deny, reverse, or modify, in whole or in
part, the determination of the Admin-
istrator, WHD; the reason or reasons
for such order shall be stated in the de-
cision.

(¢c) In the event that the WHD Ad-
ministrator assesses back wages for
wage violation(s) of §655.22(e), (g), or (j)
based upon a PWD obtained by the Ad-
ministrator from OFLC during the in-
vestigation and the administrative law
judge determines that the Administra-
tor’s request was not warranted, the
administrative law judge shall remand
the matter to the Administrator for
further proceedings on the Administra-
tor’s determination. If there is no such
determination and remand by the ad-
ministrative law judge, the administra-
tive law judge shall accept as final and
accurate the wage determination ob-
tained from OFLC or, in the event the
employer filed a timely appeal under
§655.11, the final wage determination
resulting from that process. Under no

§655.76

circumstances shall the administrative
law judge determine the validity of the
wage determination or require submis-
sion into evidence or disclosure of
source data or the names of establish-
ments contacted in developing the sur-
vey which is the basis for the PWD.

(d) The administrative law judge
shall not render determinations as to
the legality of a regulatory provision
or the constitutionality of a statutory
provision.

(e) The decision shall be served on all
parties in person or by certified or reg-
ular mail.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10169, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.75 was removed and reserved, ef-
fective Apr. 23, 2012.

§655.76 Appeal of administrative law
judge decision.

(a) The WHD Administrator or an
employer desiring review of the deci-
sion and order of an administrative law
judge, including judicial review, shall
petition the Department’s Administra-
tive Review Board (Board) to review
the decision and order. To be effective,
such petition shall be received by the
Board within 30 calendar days of the
date of the decision and order. Copies
of the petition shall be served on all
parties and on the administrative law
judge.

(b) No particular form is prescribed
for any petition for the Board’s review
permitted by this subpart. However,
any such petition shall:

(1) Be dated;

(2) Be typewritten or legibly written;

(3) Specify the issue or issues stated
in the administrative law judge deci-
sion and order giving rise to such peti-
tion;

(4) State the specific reason or rea-
sons why the party petitioning for re-
view believes such decision and order
are in error;

(5) Be signed by the party filing the
petition or by an authorized represent-
ative of such party;

(6) Include the address at which such
party or authorized representative de-
sires to receive further communica-
tions relating thereto; and

(7T) Attach copies of the administra-
tive law judge’s decision and order, and
any other record documents which
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would assist the Board in determining
whether review is warranted.

(c) Whenever the Board determines to
review the decision and order of an ad-
ministrative law judge, a notice of the
Board’s determination shall be served
upon the administrative law judge,
upon the Office of Administrative Law
Judges, and upon all parties to the pro-
ceeding within 30 calendar days after
the Board’s receipt of the petition for
review. If the Board determines that it
will review the decision and order, the
order shall be inoperative unless and
until the Board issues an order affirm-
ing the decision and order.

(d) Upon receipt of the Board’s no-
tice, the Office of Administrative Law
Judges shall within 15 calendar days
forward the complete hearing record to
the Board.

(e) The Board’s notice shall specify:

(1) The issue or issues to be reviewed;

(2) The form in which submissions
shall be made by the parties (e.g.,
briefs); and

(3) The time within which such sub-
missions shall be made.

(f) All documents submitted to the
Board shall be filed with the Adminis-
trative Review Board, U.S. Department
of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue,
NW., Room S-5220, Washington, DC
20210. An original and two copies of all
documents shall be filed. Documents
are not deemed filed with the Board
until actually received by the Board.
All documents, including documents
filed by mail, shall be received by the
Board either on or before the due date.

(g) Copies of all documents filed with
the Board shall be served upon all
other parties involved in the pro-
ceeding.

(h) The Board’s final decision shall be
served upon all parties and the admin-
istrative law judge.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10169, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.76 was removed and reserved, ef-
fective Apr. 23, 2012.

§655.80 Notice to OFLC and DHS.

(a) The WHD Administrator shall, as
appropriate, notify DHS and OFLC of
the final determination of a violation
and recommend that DHS not approve
petitions filed by an employer. The Ad-
ministrator’s notification will address
the type of violation committed by the

20 CFR Ch. V (4-1-12 Edition)

employer and the appropriate statu-
tory period for disqualification of the
employer from approval of petitions.

(b) The Administrator shall notify
DHS and OFLC upon the earliest of the
following events:

(1) Where the Administrator deter-
mines that there is a basis for a finding
of violation by an employer, and no
timely request for hearing is made; or

(2) Where, after a hearing, the admin-
istrative law judge issues a decision
and order finding a violation by an em-
ployer, and no timely petition for re-
view is filed with the Department’s Ad-
ministrative Review Board (Board); or

(3) Where a timely petition for review
is filed from an administrative law
judge’s decision finding a violation and
the Board either declines within 30
days to entertain the appeal, or re-
views and affirms the administrative
law judge’s determination; or

(4) Where the administrative law
judge finds that there was no violation
by an employer, and the Board, upon
review, issues a decision holding that a
violation was committed by an em-
ployer.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10169, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.80 was removed and reserved, ef-
fective Apr. 23, 2012.

§655.81 Application filing transition.

(a) Compliance with these regulations.
Except as provided in paragraphs (b)
and (c) of this section, employers filing
applications for H-2B workers on or
after the effective date of these regula-
tions where the date of need for the
services or labor to be performed is on
or after October 1, 2009, must comply
with all of the obligations and assur-
ances in this subpart. SWAs will no
longer accept for processing applica-
tions filed by employers for H-2B work-
ers for temporary or seasonal non-
agricultural services on or after Janu-
ary 18, 2009.

(b) Applications filed under former reg-
ulations. (1) For applications filed with
the SWASs serving the area of intended
employment prior to the effective date
of these regulations, the SWAs shall
continue to process all active applica-
tions under the former regulations and
transmit all completed applications to
the appropriate NPC for review and
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issuance of a labor certification deter-
mination.

(2) For applications filed with the
SWASs serving the area of intended em-
ployment prior to the effective date of
these regulations that were completed
and transmitted to the NPC, the NPC
shall continue to process all active ap-
plications under the former regulations
and issue a labor certification deter-
mination.

(c) Applications filed with the NPC
under these regulations. Employers fil-
ing applications on or after the effec-
tive date of these regulations where
their date of need for H-2B workers is
prior to October 1, 2009, must receive a
prevailing wage determination from
the SWA serving the area of intended
employment. The SWA shall process
such requests in accordance with the
provisions of §655.10. Once the em-
ployer receives its prevailing wage de-
termination from the SWA, it must
conduct all of the pre-filing recruit-
ment steps set forth under this subpart
prior to filing an Application for Tem-
porary Employment Certification with
the NPC.

[73 FR 78052, Dec. 19, 2008. Redesignated at 74
FR 25985, May 29, 2009]

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 74 FR 25985, May
29, 2009, §655.5 was redesignated as §655.81
and suspended, effective June 29, 2009.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10169, Feb.
21, 2012, §655.81 was removed and reserved, ef-
fective Apr. 23, 2012.

§§655.82-655.99 [Reserved]

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 77 FR 10169, Feb.
21, 2012, §§655.82 through 655.99 are added and
reserved, effective Apr. 23, 2012.

Subpart B—Labor Certification
Process for Temporary Agri-
cultural Employment in the
United States (H-2A Workers)

SOURCE: 75 FR 6959, Feb. 12, 2010, unless
otherwise noted.

§655.100 Scope and purpose of sub-
part B.

This subpart sets out the procedures
established by the Secretary of the
United States Department of Labor
(the Secretary) under the authority
given in 8 U.S.C. 1188 to acquire infor-

§655.102

mation sufficient to make factual de-
terminations of:

(a) Whether there are sufficient able,
willing, and qualified United States
(U.S.) workers available to perform the
temporary and seasonal agricultural
employment for which an employer de-
sires to import nonimmigrant foreign
workers (H-2A workers); and

(b) Whether the employment of H-2A
workers will adversely affect the wages
and working conditions of workers in
the U.S. similarly employed.

§655.101 Authority of the Office of
Foreign Labor Certification (OFLC)
Administrator.

The Secretary has delegated her au-
thority to make determinations under
8 U.S.C. 1188 to the Assistant Secretary
for the Employment and Training Ad-
ministration (ETA), who in turn has
delegated that authority to the Office
of Foreign Labor Certification (OFLC).
The determinations are made by the
OFLC Administrator who, in turn, may
delegate this responsibility to des-
ignated staff members; e.g., a Certi-
fying Officer (CO).

§655.102

To provide for a limited degree of
flexibility in carrying out the Sec-
retary’s responsibilities under the Im-
migration and Nationality Act (INA),
while not deviating from statutory re-
quirements, the OFLC Administrator
has the authority to establish, con-
tinue, revise, or revoke special proce-
dures for processing certain H-2A ap-
plications. Employers must dem-
onstrate upon written application to
the OFLC Administrator that special
procedures are necessary. These in-
clude special procedures currently in
effect for the handling of applications
for sheepherders in the Western States
(and adaptation of such procedures to
occupations in the range production of
other livestock), and for custom com-
bine harvesting crews. Similarly, for
work in occupations characterized by
other than a reasonably regular work-
day or workweek, such as the range
production of sheep or other livestock,
the OFLC Administrator has the au-
thority to establish monthly, weekly,
or semi-monthly adverse effect wage
rates (AEWR) for those occupations for

Special procedures.
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